
 
 

NOVEMBER 16, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

3:30 P.M. Closed Session; 4:30 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Sam Abed 

 DEPUTY MAYOR Michael Morasco 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  Ed Gallo 
  John Masson 

 CITY MANAGER Graham Mitchell 

 CITY CLERK Diane Halverson 

 CITY ATTORNEY Jeffrey Epp 

 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin 

 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   
 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 



 

November 16, 2016 
3:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 
is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 

prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 
Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 

instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION:  (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 

b. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 
Employee Organization: Escondido Police Officers' Association 

c. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 
Employee Organization: Escondido Firefighters' Association 

II. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 
a. Property:   901 West Washington Avenue 

City Negotiator:  Graham Mitchell, City Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Prospective Purchasers 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Agreement 

  

  
 

  



ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

November 16, 2016 
4:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION:  
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   

 
FLAG SALUTE   

 
ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

 

PRESENTATIONS: Epiphany Charter School  
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 
refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 

may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 

will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting.   



CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 

or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY/RRB) 
2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency ) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A) Regular Meeting of October 26, 2016  B) Regular Meeting of 
November 2, 2016 

4. TREASURER'S INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 - 

Request the City Council receive and file the Quarterly Investment Report. 

Staff Recommendation: Receive and File (City Treasurer's Office: Kenneth C. Hugins) 

5. FINAL MAP FOR ESCONDIDO TRACT SUB 14-0002, LOCATED AT 615 LEHNER AVENUE - 

Request the City Council approve the Final Map for Tract SUB 14-0002, 40-lot Residential Subdivision 

located at 615 Lehner Avenue. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department/Engineering: Ed Domingue) 

6. HOUSING RELATED PARKS GRANT BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 

Request the City Council approve budget adjustments totaling $13,000 for playground rehabilitation 

projects, in conjunction with the award of Program year 2014 Housing Related Parks Program funds 
from the Department of Housing and Community Development. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Ed Domingue and Community 

Services Department: Loretta McKinney 

7. FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 SOCAL WATER$MART REBATE AND LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 
DISTRICT BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Engineering Department to accept the SoCal 

Water$mart Rebate in the amount of $68,975.02 and approve a budget adjustment for the Landscape 
Maintenance District for $116,475. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department/Engineering: Ed Domingue) 

8. BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - TRASH ENCLOSURES SECURITY UPGRADE - 

Request the City Council approve the budget adjustment of $120,000 for the security upgrades to six 
dumpster enclosures, located in the public parking lots of the downtown area. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Ed Domingue and Police 

Department: Craig Carter 

9. ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATIONS - REGIONAL COMPETITION 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Public Works Director or his designee to participate 

in a SANDAG TransNet/Active Transportation Program (ATP) funding exchange as part of the Regional 
Competition of the Statewide ATP, if grant funds are recommended on a regional basis. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department/Engineering: Ed Domingue) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2016-171  B) RESOLUTION NO. 2016-172 
  



10. AUTHORIZE A MUNICIPAL BILLING COST REDUCTION SERVICE CONTRACT - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute a three-year 
Service Contract (Consulting Agreement) with Procure America to analyze existing billing rates charged 

to the City for copier, printer, and telecom services for potential renegotiation at more favorable rates. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Manager's Office: Jay Petrek) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-153 

11. PROPOSED RATE INCREASE FROM ESCONDIDO DISPOSAL FOR ANNUAL CONSUMER 
PRICE INDEX INCREASE TO SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING RATES AND FEES FOR 

RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL COLLECTIONS - 

Request the City Council approve the proposed rate increase from Escondido Disposal (EDI) for 
Residential and Commercial Solid Waste and Recycling Services. Effective January 1, 2017, a 1.9757 

percent increase would apply to all residential and commercial collection services. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Ed Domingue) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-154 

12. ESTABLISH ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEYS (SPEED ZONES) AT SEVEN LOCATIONS 
CITYWIDE - 

Request the City Council approve establishing Engineering and Traffic Surveys (speed zones) at seven 

(7) locations Citywide. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department/Engineering: Ed Domingue) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-165 

13. APPROVAL OF CALPERS INDUSTRIAL DISABILITY RETIREMENT FOR POLICE SERGEANT 

DIANA PROVOST - 

Request the City Council approve the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) 
Industrial Disability Retirement for Police Sergeant Diana Provost.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-166 

14. AWARD BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF EIGHTEEN POLICE VEHICLES - 

Request the City Council approve awarding the bid award for the purchase of eighteen 2017 Police 

Interceptor Utility Vehicles to North County Ford in the amount of $514,914.66. The bid amount 
includes sales tax, documentation, and California State Tire Recycling fees. This purchase is necessary 

to replace eleven marked patrol units, two K9 units, four volunteer patrol units, and one fire prevention 
vehicle. The existing vehicles have been in service between seven and fourteen years, and are being 

replaced due to exceeding their standard service life expectancy, excessive mileage, and rundown 

condition. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-168 
  



15. FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 STATE OF CALIFORNIA CITIZENS' OPTIONS FOR PUBLIC SAFETY 

(COPS) PROGRAM GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year 

2016-17 Citizens' Options for Public Safety (COPS) Program Grant in the amount of $232,178; approve 
grant expenditures consistent with guidelines in AB 1913; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee 

to execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve the adjustments needed to spend grant 

funds. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

16. FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 U.S. BULLETPROOF VEST PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM AND BUDGET 

ADJUSTMENTS - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year 
2016-17 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program Grant in the amount of $20.17; authorize the Chief of 

Police or his designee to execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve budget 
adjustments needed to spend grant funds. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

17. ADOPTION OF CHANGES TO THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO FEE INVENTORY - ALARM BILLING 

AND REGISTRATION - 
Request the City Council approve the proposed changes to the City of Escondido Fee Inventory for 

Registration and False Alarm Billing Fees. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-169 

18. A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH ESCONDIDO 

BIOENERGY FACILITY AT THE HALE AVENUE RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing a First Amendment to the Power Purchase Agreement 

with Escondido Bioenergy Facility, LLC. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-170 

 

CONSENT – RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of 

Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

 

  



PUBLIC HEARINGS 

19. ADOPTION OF THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, FIRE, RESIDENTIAL, PLUMBING, 

ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, AND ENERGY CODES, GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE, 

AND LOCAL AMENDMENTS - 
Request the City Council approve amending the City of Escondido Municipal Code to reflect the 2016 

California Building, Fire, Residential, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical, and Energy Codes, Green 

Building Standards Code, and proposed local amendments. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin and Fire 

Department: Russ Knowles) 

A) ORDINANCE NO. 2016-09 (First Reading and Introduction)   

B) ORDINANCE NO. 2016-17 (First Reading and Introduction) 

 

FUTURE AGENDA 

20. FUTURE AGENDA - 

The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 

Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 

announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CITY MANAGER’S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 

Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

 CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 

are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

  



ADJOURNMENT 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

November 23 - - No Meeting - 

November 30 - - No Meeting - 

December 7 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting Council Chambers 

December 14 Wednesday 7:00 PM Installation Ceremony Council Chambers 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 

the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 
are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  

Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 
http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 

center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 
• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  

• In the Library (239 S. Kalmia) during regular business hours and  
• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 

inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 

Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  

The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 

home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 
of the month at 3:30 in Closed Session and 4:30 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the CDC, Escondido Joint Powers 

Financing Authority and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 

Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


Agenda Item No.: 3 
Date: November 16, 2016 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

October 26 1  2016 
3:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 
, 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 3:30 p.m. on Wednesday, October 
26, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Councilmember 
John Masson, Deputy Mayor Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Quorum present. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

   

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to recess to Closed Session. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Escondido Police Officers' Association 
b. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Escondido Firefighters' Association 
c. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 
a. Property: 250 W. Woodward, 252 W. Woodward, 500 Escondido Blvd., 

510 Escondido Blvd. (Felix Family Trust) and 548-550 
Escondido Blvd. (Escondido Oil, LLC) 

City Negotiator: Graham Mitchell, City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: City and Felix Family Trust; and Escondido Oil, LLC 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 

October 26, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 589 



PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code §54957) 

o City Manager 
• City Attorney 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 4:34 p.m. 

MAYOR 

MINUTES CLERK  

CITY CLERK 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 590 October 26, 2016 



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

October 26,2016 
4:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 4:35 p.m. on Wednesday, October 
26, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION: 
Alan Bliss led the Moment of Reflection. 

FLAG SALUTE 
Mayor Abed led the Flag Salute. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Councilmember 
John Masson, Deputy Mayor Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. 

Also present were: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Jeffrey Epp, City Attorney; Bill Martin, Director of 
Community Development; Ed Domingue, Director of Public Works; Diane Halverson, City Clerk; and Michael 
Thorne, Minutes Clerk. 

Tom Cowan, Escondido, shared information about homeless veterans and requested donations. 

Melinda Santa Cruz, Escondido, expressed concern regarding an incident at the Friends of the Library 
bookstore. 

Karen Tage, President of City of Escondido City Employees Association, shared information on 
negotiations. 

Councilmember Masson removed item 6 from the Consent Calendar for discussion. 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve the following 
Consent Calendar items with the exception of Item 6. Motion carried unanimously. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY/RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 591 October 26, 2016 



4. MILLS ACT CONTRACT AND CEQA EXEMPTION FOR THE PROPERTY AT 178 HOWELL 
HEIGHTS DRIVE (HP 16-0009) - 
Request the City Council approve entering into a Mills Act contract with the property owners for their 
property at 178 Howell Heights Drive and approve the CEQA Exemption. (File No. 0880-10) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-161 

S. CONSULTING AGREEMENT FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS INSURANCE BROKER SERVICES - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a Consulting 
Agreement with Willis Insurance Services of California (Willis Towers Watson) for Benefits Insurance 
Broker Services. (File No. 0600-10 [A-2772]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-162 

6. NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR SUB 13-0009 LOCATED AT 2412-2418 SOUTH ESCONDIDO 
BOULEVARD - 
Request the City Council approve and accept the public improvements and authorize staff to file a 
Notice of Completion for SUB 13-0009 located at 2412-2418 South Escondido Boulevard. (File No. 
0800-10) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department/Engineering: Ed Domingue) 

Councilmember Masson abstained from the vote. 

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Deputy Mayor Morasco to approve and accept the 
public improvements and authorize staff to file a Notice of Completion for SUB 13-0009 located at 2412-2418 
South Escondido Boulevard. Ayes: Diaz, Gallo, Morasco and Abed. Noes: None. Abstained: Masson. Motion 
carried. 

CONSENT — RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of 
Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

7. ZONING CODE AMENDMENTS TO RESTRUCTURE AND STREAMLINE DEVELOPMENT 
REVIEW PROCESSES (AZ 16-0006) - 
Approved on October 19, 2016 with a vote of 5/0 (File No. 0810-20) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-15 (Second Reading and Adoption) 

8. FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR HENRY RANCH 
SUBDIVISION, TRACT 920 (PHG 14-0026) - 
Approved on October 19, 2016 with a vote of 5/0 (File No. 0800-10) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-18 (Second Reading and Adoption) 

October 26, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 592 



9. LOCAL REGISTER DESIGNATION, MILLS ACT CONTRACT, AND CEQA EXEMPTION FOR 535 
EAST 9TH AVENUE (HP 16-0005) - 
Request the City Council approve the listing of the residence at 535 East 9th Avenue on the City's Local 
Register of Historic Places; enter into a Mills Act contract with the property owner; and approve the 
CEQA Exemption. (File No. 0880-10) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-158 

Paul Bingham, Planning, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. No 
one asked to be heard. Therefore, he closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve the listing of 
the residence at 535 East 9th Avenue on the City's Local Register of Historic Places; enter into a Mills Act 
contract with the property owner; and approve the CEQA Exemption and adopt Resolution No. 2016-158. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

10. LOCAL REGISTER DESIGNATION, MILLS ACT CONTRACT, AND CEQA EXEMPTION FOR 440 
EAST 7TH AVENUE (HP 16-0006) - 
Request the City Council approve the listing of the residence at 440 East 7th Avenue on the City's Local 
Register of Historic Places; enter into a Mills Act contract with the property owner; and approve the 
CEQA Exemption. (File No. 0880-10) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-159 

Paul Bingham, Planning, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

No one from the public requested to speak on this issue in any way. 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve the listing 
of the residence at 440 East 7th Avenue on the City's Local Register of Historic Places; enter into a Mills Act 
contract with the property owner; and approve the CEQA Exemption and adopt Resolution No. 2016-159. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

October 26, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 593 



11. LOCAL REGISTER DESIGNATION, MILLS ACT CONTRACT, AND CEQA EXEMPTION FOR 1106 
SOUTH JUNIPER STREET (HP 16-0007) - 
Request the City Council approve the listing of the residence at 1106 South Juniper Street on the City's 
Local Register of Historic Places; enter into a Mills Act contract with the property owner; and approve 
the CEQA Exemption. (File No. 0880-10) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-160 

Paul Bingham, Planning, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. No 
one asked to be heard. Therefore, he closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Masson and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve the listing of 
the residence at 1106 South Juniper Street on the City's Local Register of Historic Places; enter into a Mills Act 
contract with the property owner; and approve the CEQA Exemption and adopt Resolution No. 2016-160. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

12. FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015/16 - 
Request the City Council receive and file the annual financial status report for Fiscal Year 2015/16 and 
approve the budget adjustment that recommends using the year-end General Fund surplus of 
$1,961,000 to fund specific department funding requests totaling $232,000, to transfer $500,000 to 
the Workers Compensation Fund Reserve, to transfer $200,000 to the General Liability Fund Reserve 
and to adopt Resolution No. 2016-167. The Resolution recommends transferring $529,000 to a newly 
established "Pension Rate Smoothing Reserve" and transfer the remaining balance of $500,000 to the 
General Fund Reserve. The year-end Reserve balance will be $17,392,319. (File No. 0430-30) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-167 

Sheryl Bennett, Director of Administrative Services, Joan Ryan, Assistant Director of Finance, Michelle Collett, 
Finance, and Scott Petersen, Finance, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Councilmember Masson to receive and file the 
annual financial status report for Fiscal Year 2015/16 and approve the budget adjustment that recommends 
using the year-end General Fund surplus of $1,961,000 to fund specific department funding requests totaling 
$232,000, to transfer $500,000 to the Workers Compensation Fund Reserve, to transfer $200,000 to the 
General Liability Fund Reserve and to adopt Resolution No. 2016-167. The Resolution recommends transferring 
$529,000 to a newly established "Pension Rate Smoothing Reserve" and transfer the remaining balance of 
$500,000 to the General Fund Reserve. The year-end Reserve balance will be $17,392,319 and adopt Resolution 
No. 2016-167. Motion carried unanimously. 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 594 October 26, 2016 



FUTURE AGENDA 

13. PROPOSED CHANGES TO ANNUAL INVENTORY OF CITY FEES - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing new City fees; making changes to certain existing fees 
for service; and deleting fees for services that are no longer used. (File No. 0480-45) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-147(R) 

Sheryl Bennett, Director of Administrative Services, and Christina Holmes, Revenue Manager, presented the 
staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve authorizing new 
City fees; making changes to certain existing fees for service; and deleting fees for services that are no longer 
used and adopt Resolution No. 2016-147 R. Motion carried unanimously. 

14. FUTURE AGENDA - 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

Councilmember Gallo reported on the San Diego County Water Authority and shared information about recent 
legislation; noted that North County Transit District Board Meetings are being held in various North County 
cities. 

Mayor Abed reported on SANDAG; Palomar Community College President met with the five North County Mayors 
of Innovate 78 Corridor. 

CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

• CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 595 October 26, 2016 



Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 5:50 p.m. 

MAYOR 

 

CITY CLERK 

MINUTES CLERK 

  

October 26, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 596 



Agenda Item No.: 3 
Date: November 16, 2016 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

November 2, 2016 
3:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 3:30 p.m. on Wednesday, November 
2, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Councilmember 
John Masson, Deputy Mayor Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Quorum present. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/ RRB) 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Councilmember Masson to recess to Closed 
Session. Motion carried unanimously. 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator: 

Employee Organization: 
b. Agency Negotiator: 

Employee Organization: 
c. Agency Negotiator: 

Employee Organization: 

Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 
Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 
Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 
Escondido Police Officers' Association 
Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 
Escondido Firefighters' Association 

November 2, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 597 



ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 3:56 p.m. 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 

MINUTES CLERK 

November 2, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 598 



CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

November 2, 2016 
4:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, November 
2, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION: 
Randy Ortlieb led the Moment of Reflection. 

FLAG SALUTE 
Mayor Abed led the Flag Salute. 

PROCLAMATIONS: 
Law Enforcement Officer of the Year - Chief Craig Carter 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Councilmember 
John Masson, Deputy Mayor Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. 

Also present were: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Jeffrey Epp, City Attorney; Bill Martin, Director of 
Community Development; Ed Domingue, Director of Public Works; Diane Halverson, City Clerk; and Michael 
Thorne, Minutes Clerk. 

Randy Roberts, Escondido, stated he supports the proposed MF/RO facility but does not endorse the 
proposed location. 

Louise Reed, Escondido, expressed concern with donations given to Deputy Mayor Morasco. 

Carol Rea, Escondido, thanked the City and Police Department for aid creating a successful Halloween 
night in the Old Escondido District. 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 599 November 2, 2016 



CONSENT CALENDAR 

Councilmember Diaz removed item 6 from the Consent Calendar for discussion. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Deputy Mayor Morasco to approve the following 
Consent Calendar items with the exception of item 6. Motion carried unanimously. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY/ RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A) Regular Meeting of September 28, 2016 B) Regular Meeting 

of October 12, 2016 C) Regular Meeting of October 19, 2016 

4. ADOPTION OF MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION/ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FOR 
THE SAN PASQUAL UNDERGROUNDING PROJECT (ENV 15-0016) - 
Request the City Council approve the adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration/Environmental 
Assessment for the San Pasqual Undergrounding Project that would remove, relocate, and replace 
approximately 2.5 miles of open canal jointly owned by the City of Escondido and the Vista Irrigation 
District located primarily on the San Pasqual Reservation. (File No. 0820-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin and 
Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-156 

5. SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES FOR THE CEMETERY AREA WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing a Second Amendment to the Consulting Agreement with 
Michael Baker International, not to exceed $133,620, resulting in a new contract amount of $574,326. 
(File No. 0600-10 [A-3163]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-164 

6. SET HEARING TO ADOPT THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, FIRE, RESIDENTIAL, 
PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, ENERGY, PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE AND 
GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODES AND LOCAL AMENDMENTS - 
Request the City Council schedule a public hearing on November 16, 2016, to introduce Ordinances 
Nos. 2016-09 and 2016-17, amending the City of Escondido Municipal Code to reflect the 2016 
California Building, Fire, Residential, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical, Energy, Property Maintenance 
Codes and Green Building Standards Codes and proposed local amendments. (File No. 0680-50) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin and Fire 
Department: Russ Knowles) 

Councilmember Diaz shared information about Building Code 3120B.11 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Deputy Mayor Morasco to schedule a public hearing 
on November 16, 2016, to introduce Ordinances Nos. 2016-09 and 2016-17, amending the City of Escondido 
Municipal Code to reflect the 2016 California Building, Fire, Residential, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical, 
Energy, Property Maintenance Codes and Green Building Standards Codes and proposed local amendments. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

November 2, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 600 



CONSENT — RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of 
Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

7. SOUTH CENTRE CITY AREA PLAN WORKSHOP (PHG 15-0003) - 
A workshop updating the City Council on the South Centre City Area Plan preparation efforts. The City 
received a Sustainable Communities Planning Grant to fund this project and staff has been working 
with a consultant to prepare this Area Plan involving four General Plan Target Areas. The project is 
intended to foster economic development, promote Smart Growth principles, improve aesthetics, 
encourage pedestrian activity, and allow more flexibility in the planning process. (File No. 0800-90) 

Staff Recommendation: Receive and File (City Manager's Office: Jay Petrek) 

Jay Petrek, Assistant City Manager, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

NO ACTION, INFORMATION ONLY. 

FUTURE AGENDA 

8. FUTURE AGENDA - 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

Deputy Mayor Morasco reported on the School Subcommittee meeting and provided updates on existing site 
renovations; noted declining enrollment within the Elementary Districts. 

Councilmember Gallo reported on the SANDAG Borders Committee Meeting and shared information about the 
Consulate General of Mexico; the San Diego County Water Authority received several national awards. 

Councilmember Masson shared that EDCO received the 2016 Blue Sky Award. 

Mayor Abed reported on the Rincon Water District Meeting; reported on SANDAG update to the San Diego 
Regional Working Group; noted that Chairman Larsen was replaced by Chairman Martinez. 

November 2, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 601 



CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

• CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

ADJOURNMENT 

   

    

 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 5:51 p.m. 

  

     

 

MAYOR 

 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

MINUTES CLERK 

   

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 602 November 2, 2016 

























































































































CONSUMER PRICE INDEX CALCULATION
CPI:  1.9757%

Last 12 month period for which statistics are available is the first half of 2015
compared to the first half of 2016 in the San Diego area

All Urban Consumers (all items), base period of 1982-84 = 100

Current CPI 272.628 (first half of 2016)
Previous CPI 267.346 (first half of 2015)

Change 5.282 points
Percentage change 1.9757%

Actual Percentage Rate Change 1.9757% (for Commercial Permanent Basic Bin Service Only)

BASIC COMMERCIAL RATE

Current Proposed
1/1/2016 1/1/2017

3yard 1/week 88.75$                 90.50$        
Franchise Fee 9.86$                   10.06

AB939 0.21$                   0.21
HHW 0.52$                   0.52
Total 99.34$                 101.29$      

PERMANENT BINS
BIN SIZE 1 x WK 2 x WK 3 x WK 4 x WK 5 x WK
1 1/2 YARD 68.09 114.32 160.61 206.91 253.17
3 YARD 101.29 177.23 253.18 329.09 405.03
4 YARD 132.57 235.64 338.75 441.85 544.92

EXTRA DUMP CHARGES FOR PERMANENT BINS
1 1/2 YARD 3 YARD 4 YARD

Per Bin Dump 19.71 29.15 36.48

T-BINS 88.74 106.46
Customer is allowed to keep bin for 1 week

GREENS T-BIN 79.15 97.95

CONSTRUCTION BINS
BIN SIZE 1 x WK 2 x WK 3 x WK 4 x WK 5 x WK
1 1/2 YARD 97.83 154.31 210.81 267.29 323.77
3 YARD 138.62 251.59 364.61 477.57 590.58
4 YARD 158.57 309.27 459.88 610.56 761.22

NOTE: ALL CONSTRUCTION BINS HAVE A ONE TIME DELIVERY FEE OF: 33.08$               

EXTRA DUMP CHARGES FOR CONSTRUCTION BINS
1 1/2 YARD 3 YARD 4 YARD

Per Bin Dump 25.51 34.72 42.20

jklein
Typewritten Text
Resolution No. 2016-154

jklein
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"

jklein
Typewritten Text
Page 3 of 6







































































































 

 1 

November 9, 2016 
CITY HALL CLOSED 
 
City Hall will be closed this Friday, November 11 in observance of Veterans Day. 
San Diego is a hub for manufacturing? More than 3,000 companies manufacture in the San Diego-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
On November 11, Kit Carson Park will host high school cross country conference finals.  This 
is a smaller sized high school cross country meet that will be staging in the El Arroyo picnic 
area and running the trails of Kit Carson Park.  The cross country meet will have 18 high 
schools from San Diego County and around 340 runners.  The first race is scheduled to begin 
at 2 p.m. and the last race is scheduled to end at 4 p.m.  
 
SPECIAL EVENTS 
 

 Veteran’s Day Ceremony 
10 a.m. Grape Day Park (Military Tribute Wall of Courage) 
Sponsored by the Military Tribute Committee and Escondido Allied Veterans’ Council, 
the celebration will include a full patriotic program with music and honored guests.  
Continuing at 11 a.m. is a ceremony hosted by the American Legion Post 149.  For 
more information call 760-745-1159. 

 

 For information about other activities taking place in Escondido, please visit 
www.visitescondido.com  

  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
Major Projects Update 
 
Commercial / Office:  
 
1. Escondido Research and Technology Center – East (ERTC) (Developer: James McCann) – 

No change from the following update reported last week:  This is a 72,000 square foot 
medical office building proposed on the east side of Citracado Parkway across from Palomar 
Medical Center located at 2130 Citracado Parkway.  A grading permit has been issued by the 
Engineering Division.  Building plans have been submitted for plan check.  The applicant has 
recently requested to install a temporary paved parking lot in this area to serve the hospital.  
A grading plan for the temporary parking lot was approved June 13, 2016. 

 
2. Escondido Research and Technology Center – West (ERTC) (Developer: James McCann) – 

No change from the following update reported last week:  This is a 144,000 sq. ft. 
development involving two medical office buildings proposed on the west side of Citracado 
Parkway across from Palomar Medical Center located at 2097 – 2175  Citracado Parkway.  
A grading permit has been issued by the Engineering Division.  Esgil and the Planning 
Division have approved the building plans.  A fee deferral agreement has been signed and 



 

 2 

the building permit was issued June 23, 2016.  A tentative parcel map (TPM) for office 
condominiums was approved on July 12, 2016.  A Final Parcel Map was submitted by the 
applicant on July 25, 2016, and is currently being reviewed by Planning and Engineering.  A 
modified building plan to add a linear accelerator is now being reviewed by staff. 

 
3. Centerpointe 78 Commercial (Developer: Lars Andersen, Pacific Development) – No change 

from the following update reported last week:  This project is a 45,650 sq. ft. supermarket 
and restaurant located at 925 N. Broadway.  The project was approved by the City Council 
on December 9, 2015.  Demolition of the former auto dealership has been completed down 
to the foundation.  Grading plans have been submitted to Engineering and Planning for 
review.  Building plans for the supermarket were submitted to the Building Division on 
September 14, 2016, and are being reviewed by Building and Planning staff.  A boundary 
adjustment application to place the two buildings on separate parcels went to Planning on 
October 14, 2016. 

 
4. Westfield Theater (Developer: Kim Brewer, Westfield) – No change from the following update 

reported last week:  This project is a 10-auditorium movie theater totaling 57,600 sq. ft. 
located on the north side of the Westfield Mall.  The project was approved by the City Council 
on November 4, 2015. 

 
5. Felicita Development, LLC (Developer: Katherine Park, Creative Design Associates) – No 

change from the following update reported last week: This project is a 140-unit hotel, and a 
gas station or office/residential care facility at the southeast corner of Felicita Rd. and 
Gamble Lane. The applicant and staff met with the architect to discuss building elevations, 5-
story height limitations and site design issues given the existing wetland constraints on the 
property. Additional technical analysis and coordination is needed to address traffic, biology, 
water and sewer service, geotechnical and storm water concerns, along with a market study 
for the proposed uses. The applicant met with the wild life agencies and is responding to 
technical studies needed to complete the application. 

 
6. Springhill Suites (Developer: Raj Patel, San Bernardino Hospitality LLC) – No change from 

the following update reported last week:  This project is a 4-story, 105-suite hotel totaling 
73,300 sq. ft. located at 200 La Terraza Drive.  The hotel includes a small conference room 
and an enlarged lobby for serving continental breakfast.  A revised set of grading plans has 
been approved since February and grading for the hotel site has now started.  Building plans 
have been approved by Esgil, Fire, Planning and Engineering.  The building permit is ready 
to be issued. 

 
7. Escondido Auto Park Association (Developer: Tim Brecht, Escondido Auto Park Association) 

– The association is proposing to upgrade the existing electronic message sign along I-15.  
An application for a new regional market sign and an amendment to the Sign Ordinance to 
increase the allowable display area for a regional market sign was submitted to the Planning 
Division on May 6, 2016.  The proposed sign would be located in the same location as the 
existing sign at a slightly lower height (73.5 feet) with approximately the same overall 



 

 3 

dimensions.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the new regional market 
sign and amendment to the Sign Ordinance on July 12, 2016.  The City Council approved the 
new regional market sign and amendment to the Sign Ordinance on August 17, 2016.  
Building plans are currently being reviewed by staff and a building permit should be issued 
soon. 

 
Industrial 

 
1. StorQuest (Developer: The William Warren Group, Inc.) – No change from the following 

update reported last week: This proposed project at 220 W. Mission Avenue involves a 
102,500 sq. ft., four-story self-storage facility development with three in-line shops and a 
small office.  The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
General Plan Amendment, Planned Development and Zone Change on August 9, 2016.  The 
project was approved by the City Council on September 14, 2016. 
 

2. Victory Industrial Development (Developer: Scott Merry, Badiee Development) – No change 
from the following update reported last week:  This project involves two industrial buildings 
totaling 91,000 sq. ft. (one building 55,500 sq. ft., second building 35,500 sq. ft.) located at 
2005 Harmony Grove Road and a zone change from residential to Planned Industrial 
consistent with the updated General Plan.  The Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of the proposed General Plan Amendment, Planned Development and Zone 
Change on August 9, 2016.  It was approved by the City Council on September 14, 2016.  
Building plans were submitted into plan check the following day and are now being reviewed 
by staff. 

 
3. Micro-Filtration Reverse Osmosis (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – The 

proposed project involves a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the development of a new 
City facility to provide advanced treatment for recycled water produced at the City of 
Escondido’s Hale Avenue Resource Recovery Facility (HARRF) for agricultural uses with 
the capacity for future treatment for indirect potable reuse.  The facility would be sized for a 
total production capacity of 2.0 million gallons per day (mgd).  A previous proposal for 
development of the facility at 2512 East Washington Avenue has now been shelved while 
staff pursues development of the facility on an alternative site located on the southeastern 
corner of Washington Avenue and Ash Street.  On July 20, 2016, the City Council approved 
a first-phase design contract with Black and Veatch for the design effort need to bring the 
new site design to the Planning Commission for CUP consideration in December 2016.  If 
the Planning Commission approves the CUP, a contract for the remaining design work will 
be brought forward to the City Council.  Site and building design concepts have been 
developed and two neighborhood meetings were held on October 12, 2016 and November 
3, 2016.  A 30-day public review period for the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration 
started on October 27, 2016 and will end on November 27, 2016.  A Planning Commission 
hearing on the proposed CUP tentatively has been scheduled for December 13, 2016. 

 



 

 4 

4. Wastewater Collections Yard Expansion (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) 
– The project involves development of 1.8 acres of a larger, approximately 15.4-acre site 
for the construction of a new wastewater collections yard and maintenance facility for the 
City’s Hale Avenue Resource Recovery Facility (HARRF) at 1521 S. Hale Avenue.  The 
proposed facilities will consist of three separate pre-fabricated metal buildings 3,735 sq. ft. - 
5,670 sq. ft. for collections; work bays and workshops for regular maintenance of vehicles 
and equipment.  The project would require the processing of a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) and rezone.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing and recommended 
approval on May 10, 2016.  It was approved by the City Council on June 15, 2016.  
Grading, building and landscape plans are now being reviewed by staff for permit issuance. 

 
5. Escondido Self-Storage Facility  (Developer: Brandywine Homes, Inc.) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  A modification to a Master and Precise Development 
Plan for revisions to the design of a previously approved, but not yet constructed, self-storage 
facility with direct access to Brotherton Road near the intersection with Cranston Drive.  The 
proposed project was submitted on May 11, 2016, and proposes approximately 77,500 SF of 
storage area in two buildings.  The larger building is two stories over a basement with all 
interior loading.  The smaller building is one-story with some exterior roll-up doors.  The 
project site is also part of a five-lot Tentative Map for four residential lots and one commercial 
lot (Tract 900) that is concurrently being processed for an extension of time.  Planning staff 
approved the environmental technical studies needed for the update of the previous 
environmental review on July 12.  Architecture was approved by staff Design Review on July 
14 and an addendum to the previous MND has been prepared.  The project was 
recommended for approval by the Planning Commission on September 13, 2016, and the 
City Council approved the project on October 12, 2016. 

 
Institutional 
 
1. John Paul the Great Catholic University (Developer:  Kevin Meziere, John Paul the Great 

Catholic University) – No change from the following update reported last week:  A Conditional 
Use Permit to expand the campus and student enrollment at 155 W. Grand Avenue was 
approved by the Planning Commission on December 8, 2015. The proposal includes 
improvements to the former H. Johnson site at 131 S. Broadway for studio and classroom 
space, and the former bank at 200 W. Grand Avenue for administrative offices and a student 
resource center.  The proposed expansion would also increase the student enrollment from 
300 to 1,200 students over the next several years.   

 
2. Escondido United Reformed Church (Developer: Brent Cooper) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  The project is an expansion for a phased, multi-year, 
master construction/development plan for a new 12,250 SF two-story sanctuary, conversion 
of existing buildings to a social hall, demolition of an existing social hall/classroom building 
(approx. 4,620 SF) and construction of approximately 5,250 SF for a nursery, multi-purpose 
room, classrooms for Sunday school at 1864 N. Broadway.  Revised architectural plans were 



 

 5 

unanimously approved by the Planning Commission on June 14, 2016.  The grading plans 
are now in plan check. 

 
3. Emmanuel Faith Community Church (Developer: Jim North, EFCC) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  The project is a phased, multi-year construction and 
renovation program for the Emmanuel Faith campus that includes demolishing the existing 
children’s rooms and constructing a new nursery and children’s building for up to 200 
children, construction of a two-story training center/youth complex, renovation of the existing 
high school/college building, conversion of the existing education center into an office and 
meeting room building, demolition of the existing café and construction of a new café, 
demolition and construction of a new maintenance building, construction of a new gathering 
plaza with baptismal outdoor water feature, and reconstruction and expansion of the existing 
worship center from 1,600 seats to 2,000 seats.  The Planning Commission approved the 
proposed modification to the Conditional Use Permit for the campus on June 9, 2015.  
Grading, building and landscape plans for the first phase (45,414 square foot new children’s 
building) are being reviewed by staff and Esgil.   

 
Residential 

 
1. Oak Creek (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West) – No change from the following update 

reported last week: This project is a 65-unit single family development located at the 
southeastern corner of Felicita Road and Hamilton Lane approved by the City Council in 2015. 
The LAFCO Board unanimously approved the annexation on October 5, 2015, and the 
annexation has been recorded.  No grading or improvement plans have been submitted by the 
developer at this time.  

 
2. Amanda Estates (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West) – No change from the following 

update reported last week: This project is a 22-unit single family development on Amanda 
Lane approved by the City Council in 2015. The LAFCO Board approved the reorganization 
(annexation) at their meeting on August 3, 2015, and the annexation has been recorded.  No 
grading or improvement plans have been submitted by the developer at this time. 

 
3. Pradera (Developer: Moses Kim, Lennar Homes) – No change from the following update 

reported last week:  This project consists of a 70-unit single family development located at 
the northeastern corner of Ash Street and Lehner Avenue.  The developer has obtained 
building permits for five phases involving 44 homes and those phases are under 
construction.  Homebuyer interest in the product remains high and sales are progressing.  All 
five final maps in the project have now recorded.  Precise grading plans for all phases have 
now been approved. 

 
4. Lexington (Zenner) (Developer: Eric Johnston, KB Homes) – No change from the following 

update reported last week:  The project is a 40-unit, single-family development at the 
northeastern corner of Lehner Avenue and Vista Avenue.  The three model homes on the 
eastern side of Ash Street are now open and sales are progressing as expected.  A rough 



 

 6 

grading permit was issued for the project site on August 18, 2016 and grading is underway.  
The final map is scheduled for City Council approval on November 16, 2016.  The precise 
grading plan for Phase 1 is nearing approval. 

 
5. Stella Park Condominiums (Developer: Edward Kaen, ETP, LLC) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  This project is a 65-unit, three-story townhome Planned 
Development located at 2516 S. Escondido Blvd.  The project includes three separate 
recreation areas for residents.  The City Council approved the project on April 27, 2016.  No 
grading or improvement plans have been submitted by the developer at this time. 

 
6. Wohlford (Developer: Jack Henthorne) –  No change from the following update reported last 

week:  This project is a 55-unit single family development located on Bear Valley Parkway 
east of Encino Drive.  A Specific Alignment Plan for Bear Valley Parkway detailing the 
proposed roadway design is under review.  The EIR consultant and staff have reviewed the 
applicant’s technical reports and provided comments for revisions.  Bi-weekly status 
meetings have commenced as the Draft EIR gets underway.   

 
7. Latitude II (Developer: Peter Zak, Lyon/NCA) – No change from the following update 

reported last week:  This project is a 112-unit multi-family development, located at the 
northeastern corner of Centre City Parkway and Washington Avenue, and approved by the 
City Council on August 19, 2015.  A Final Subdivision Map has been submitted for review 
and is awaiting approval of a boundary adjustment for a property exchange with the adjacent 
motel owner.  Grading and building plans are nearing approval.   

 
8. Canyon Grove Estates Tract 932 (Developer: John Vance, Shea Homes) – This project is a 

179-lot single family residential development on the north side of Vista Avenue east of 
Conway Drive.  The final architectural design and landscaping plans for the Precise Plan 
application were approved by the Planning Commission on June 14, 2016.  A rough grading 
permit has been issued and grading is underway.  The Final Map has been approved by the 
City Council.  Precise grading plans for the model complex and a model home permit have 
been approved.  Building plans for the construction of eight model homes were submitted on 
May 18, 2016 and are expected to be issued this week.  The applicant is coordinating the 
plan review for off-site street improvements on Ash Street with the County’s Department of 
Public Works. 
 

9. Safari Highlands Ranch (SHR) (Developer: Jeb Hall, Concordia Homes) – No change from 
the following update reported last week:  This project is a 550-unit single family development 
located east of the Rancho San Pasqual community and north of the San Diego Safari Park. 
The project involves 1,100 acres including annexation and a Sphere of Influence update for a 
master planned community with parks, trails, recreation center, fire station and open space.  
Planning and Engineering extensions of staff have been funded by the applicant and retained 
to assist the City in processing the project.  The City Council approved the consultant 
contract for preparing the EIR on March 23, 2016.  The contract planner has been meeting 
with the consultant, Michael Baker International (MBI), and has started review of first draft 



 

 7 

sections of the EIR.  While the EIR is generally on schedule, there have been some 
changes to the site plan, which will affect the EIR schedule.  The changes include the 
elimination of the “water factory” for wastewater treatment, elimination of the public park, 
changes to the entry road which would now be private instead of public, and relocation of 
the fire station to the former public park site.  These changes will require the applicant’s 
civil engineer to make a number of revisions to the tentative map, but are not anticipated to 
affect the proposed development envelope or the number of proposed lots.  A revised 
tentative map depicting the site plan changes was submitted on October 17, 2016, and is 
being reviewed by staff and the contract planner. 
 

10. High Pointe Tract 693-J (Developer: Russell Schaeffer, True Life Communities) – No change 
from the following update reported last week: This project is a custom-home development 
with 39 estate lots accessed from Mesa Rock Road. Staff has prepared a bond and fee letter 
based on the proposed grading and landscape plans, and has sent it to the applicant. 

 
11. Del Prado (Developer: Kerry Garza, Touchstone Communities) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  This project is a 113-unit townhome-style Planned 
Development located at the southwestern corner of Brotherton Road and the Centre City 
Parkway frontage road. The project includes a recreational facility, pool, and open space 
areas.  Staff worked through various site design and utility issues with the applicant prior to 
scheduling the project for a public hearing.  The City Council approved the project on May 
11, 2016.  No grading or improvement plans have been submitted by the developer at this 
time. 

 
12. 701 San Pasqual Valley Rd (Developer: Bob Stewart) – No change from the following update 

reported last week:  This project is a 19-unit single family development located at 701 San 
Pasqual Rd/1201 E. 5th Avenue (formerly Tract 898) on 7.2 acres. The application is under 
review and a letter detailing additional comments and submittal requirements was forwarded 
to the applicant.  Additional information and revised plans were submitted to the Planning 
Division on June 13, 2016.  Planning Division has reviewed the submittal and informed the 
applicant that it is still incomplete. 

 
13. Veterans Village (Developer: Veterans Village of San Diego) – No change from the following 

update reported last week:  This project is a mixed-use development involving a 54-unit 
affordable multi-family residential apartment project for military veterans and their families.  It 
includes on-site administration office, business center, club house and other support spaces 
for the residents; and a small commercial component to support training opportunities offered 
at the facility at 1556 S. Escondido Boulevard.  Building plans have been submitted for 
review and comment; the grading plans and landscaping plans have been approved.  A 
demolition permit for the historic structures on-site has been issued following completion of 
the required mitigation and work is expected to commence soon. 

 
14. Escondido Gateway (Developer: Greg Waite, Integral Communities) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  This project is a mixed-use development involving 126 



 

 8 

residential units within three, 4-5 story buildings with indoor and outdoor recreational areas 
and an opportunity for a small (1,000 sq. ft.) commercial/flex space on 2.6 acres (48 dwelling 
units/acre) located at 700 W. Grand Avenue (former Police Station) across the street from 
the Escondido Transit Center.  Plans were submitted for the project involving a Specific Plan 
Amendment, Tentative Map, Planned Development and Development Agreement.  On 
September 13, 2016, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed 
development.  The City Council approved the project on October 12, 2016. 

 
15. The Villages at Escondido Country Club (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West, Inc.) – 

The project would redevelop the former 109.3-acre Escondido Country Club golf course 
property with a new residential development consisting of 392 dwelling units including single-
family detached and attached duplex units.  The proposed project density is 3.6 dwelling 
units per acre with a minimum residential lot size of 2,555 square feet.  The development 
would include 46 acres of open space including a landscaped greenbelt with a four-mile trail 
system linking park features.  Other proposed amenities include a new clubhouse building, 
swimming pool, gym, tennis/pickle ball court, restaurant and bar and banquet facilities.  The 
proposed General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan, Vesting Tentative Map and Zone Change 
applications and plans were submitted to the Planning Division on October 31, 2016.  The 
plans are now being routed to City departments and agencies for comments.  The developer 
has retained Dudek to prepare the Draft EIR for the project.  The developer will fund an 
extension of Planning staff to assist the City in processing the project. 

 
Building Division: 
 
1. The Building Division had a very busy week issuing 90 permits for the week with a total 

valuation of $1,120,191.  Permits were for tenant improvements, photovoltaics, mobile 
home set ups and miscellaneous type.  

 
2. 36 photovoltaic permits were issued for the week.  The Building Division has issued 1,125 

solar permits this year compared to 1,163 issued for the same time last year.  
 
3. Counter techs had one of the busiest weeks on record, assisting, on average, 40 

customers per day with 50 customers on Monday. 
 
4. Building inspections averaged 33 inspections per day. 38 inspections were requested on 

Friday.  There were 8 inspections held over on Friday.  Our new senior building inspector, 
John LeVey, joined our team on 11/7/2016.  John comes to us after many years with Esgil 
Corp as an inspector and plans examiner.  John brings years of knowledge and experience 
to the position and we look forward to utilizing his expertise to help advance development 
projects. 

 
5.  So far this year the Building Division has processed 3,323 permits, compared to 3,154 

permits last year to date. Current building valuation for all issued permits to date is 
$55,158,448 compared to $41,969,987 for last year.  



 

 9 

 
6. 56 new single-family dwellings permits have been issued this year compared with 19 

issued at the same time last year.  
 
7. Projects nearing permit issuance are: 

a. Latitude 2, 112-unit apartment building at 610-660 Centre City Pkwy. 
b. Church of Resurrection at 1445 Conway, 18,000 sf church. 
c. Shea Homes, 179 single-family dwellings near Lehner Ave. 
d. Veterans Village, at 1540 S Escondido Blvd, 40,000 sf 3-story apartment building. 
e. Springhill Suites, at 200 La Terraza, 105 unit hotel. 

 
8. The construction of the City Plaza mixed-use building at 300 S. Escondido Blvd is 

continuing and scaffolding for the podium has been being set. 
 
9. The Solutions for Change affordable housing project at 1560 S. Escondido Blvd has 

received foundation and masonry grout inspections.  
 
10. The Meadowbrook three-story apartment building with underground garage at 2081 Garden 

Valley Glen has received inspections for the 2nd floor slab and the 3rd story walls are being 
framed.  

 
11.  SDG&E is completing a utilities upgrade at Greencrest Mobile Home Park at 541 W 15th 

and will be starting upgrades soon at Town and Country Mobile Home Park at 2280 E 
Valley Pkwy and Citrus Gardens, 211 S Citrus Ave.  

 
12.  Escondido Disposal is receiving underground inspections for their conveyer pits associated 

with their large expansion and remodel. 
 
13. Permits were issued for a new single family dwelling at 2419 Amber Ln. 
 
14. Permits were issued for the new Harbor Freight Tools at 879 N. Escondido Blvd.  
 
15. In-house plan review is very busy and plans are averaging close to 30 days on the initial 

review and 10 to 15 days on resubmittals.   
 
16. Building staff continues to review the new 2016 California Building Codes to identify major 

changes in anticipation of the new code adoption on 1/1/2017.  Staff will be attending 
available training on the new codes.  

 
Code Enforcement: 
 
1. As of October 31, 2016, the total number of open code enforcement cases is 462 cases.  

During the prior week, 44 new cases were opened, and 57 cases were closed, with a 
backlog of an additional 12 cases not yet opened for assignment and investigation.  



 

 10 

 
2. There were 644 illegal signs confiscated during the weekend. 

 
3. Last week, the Business License Division issued 34 new licenses and received 33 new 

applications, in addition to 194 renewals. 
 
 
PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Kit Carson Park Clean UP 
Approximately 850 people from The Rancho Bernardo Church Volunteer volunteered last 
Saturday at Kit Carson Park under the supervision of various city staff members. The group 
spread mulch, removed vegetation and trash, trimmed trees and planted 15 new trees.  They 
also painted the amphitheater, girls’ softball dugouts, concession stand, a dumpster enclosure 
and SDG&E boxes. The volunteers brought with them not only tools but a great sense of 
ownership and pride and it showed in the work they completed. Their  volunteer efforts saved 
the City of Escondido countless man hours of work and completed many tasks that were 
months away from being completed.  
 
Graffiti Report for October 2016 
 

        Service Requests Opened              464 

        Graffiti Service Requests Closed    408 

        Service Requests in CDBG Area    121 
 
Building Maintenance: 
 
The repair and painting of the wood detail on the Arts Center’s colonnades along Valley 
Parkway and Escondido Blvd has been completed.  
 
ENGINEERING 
 
2015/2016 Street Rehabilitation and Maintenance Project: 
The contractor is continuing to concentrate his paving repair effort in the Old Escondido 
Historical District in preparation to the arrival of the ARAM surface contractor which is set for 
November 9 of this week. The prime contractor has installed temporary striping along El Norte 
Parkway between Ash Street to the east and Nutmeg Street to the west on Wednesday of last 
week. The crack fill operation is ongoing along Valley Parkway between Midway Drive and 
Citrus Avenue. 
 
Rose to Foxdale Neighborhood Parking District: Bids have been solicited and a contract 
awarded to    HI- WAY Safety of Escondido. The signage has been reviewed and approved for 
manufacturing at this time.     



 

 11 

            
PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 
 
Pradera - Lennar Communities: 
The construction of the water main along Stanley Avenue is complete. Water quality testing of 
the new pipe line began this week. Phase 5 of the project is in framing stage at this time     
  
Lexington Model Homes - KB Homes: 
The importing of material to complete the pads associated with the project north of Lehner 
Avenue has been completed. 
 
City Plaza: Escondido Boulevard @ 3rd Avenue 
No changes from the following reported last week: The contractor is actively framing the 
second floor structure in anticipation off the next concrete pour.  
 
Tract 932 - Canyon Grove Shea Homes Community: 
The contractor is continuing the mass grading for the 179 housing units. The Ash Street/ Vista 
Avenue improvements, which are the jurisdiction of San Diego County, is at a standstill until 
elements of the dry utilizes have been relocated along Ash Street.  On site activity includes the 
installation of base material in preparation of pavement installation for the model homes streets 
on Thursday November 10.  The construction of the off-site water main along Century Way 
began this week and is scheduled for completion in three weeks. 
 
Solutions Housing Project 1560 S. Escondido Boulevard: 
The construction of the remaining water line lateral will continue this week. Testing will not 
begin until November 14.   
 
Latitude II Condominiums by a Lyon Homes Partnership: Washington Avenue @ Centre 
City Parkway 
The work for installing the new water main in Washington Avenue is continuing this week. Until 
the site has construction water tested and available, no grading activity can proceed on site. 
 
Westminster Theological Seminary Graduate Student Housing: Boyle Avenue @ Bear 
Valley Parkway 
The grading contractor has ended the import of material to the site. Mass grading should be 
finalized in the coming week. 
 
FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
East Valley Pkwy/Valley Center Road Widening Project: 
The City has completed all conditions of approval and received Caltrans’s Authorization to 
Construct this project.  The last environmental permit has been acquired.  Staff continues 
working with utility providers to finalize their plans to underground existing overheard cables 
within the project area.   



 

 12 

   
Jim Stone Pool: 
This project makes needed repairs to both pools and updates pool fixtures and equipment to 
meet current Health Department standards.  The project consultant submitted updated 100% 
plans on 10/20/16.  Staff has reviewed updates and provided plan review comments to the 
project consultant to finalize project plans.  Staff anticipates advertising the project for bids as 
soon as the contract documents are accepted.   
 
HSIP Traffic Signals at El Norte Pkwy/Fig and E. Valley Pkwy/Date: 
This project installs two high priority traffic signals, and is funded with Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) grant funds.  Staff continues to work with Caltrans’s for approval 
of our request for Authorization to Construct the project.  Project plans are complete; however, 
Caltrans approval of the Authorization to Construct is needed before the project can be put out 
to bid. 
 
POLICE 
 
Incidents 
 

 On 10/29/16 at about 11:51 a.m., the branch manager of the US Bank, located at 2369 
E. Valley Pkwy., called police to report an attempted robbery. The manager reported a 
15-year-old male had entered the bank waiving a box cutter around and yelled, “This is 
a stick up”.  The juvenile fled the scene on foot with another unknown juvenile. The 
juvenile was described as a Hispanic male, 15-16 years old, thin build, wearing a red 
hoodie and carrying a box cutter. There was no loss from the bank and the investigation 
is ongoing. 

 On 11/1/16, fire department and police officers responded to reports of a brush fire in 
the creek bed east of the Canyon Crest Mobile Home Park at 2100 S Escondido Blvd. 
Both Escondido and County Fire Units responded. The fire was located around what 
appeared to be a homeless encampment in the creek bed, but no one was located or 
seen in the area. The fire was quickly extinguished and no injuries or property damage 
was reported.  

 On 11/4/16 at about 2:07 p.m., officers responded to the area of 5th Ave and Spruce St 
to investigate reports of a domestic violence incident in progress. Callers reported 
seeing “A male manhandling a female.”  Officers arrived and were unable to locate any 
victim. At about 2:17 p.m., Palomar Medical Center notified the police department that a 
female stabbing victim had been admitted to the emergency room.  Officers responded 
and determined the female victim was stabbed by her boyfriend during the earlier 
incident. The victim suffered serious, but non-life threatening injuries.  Officers quickly 
identified the suspect and converged on his residence arresting him without incident. 
The suspect was booked at the Vista Detention Facility on attempted murder and 
domestic violence charges.  



 

 13 

 On 11/4/16 at about 7:31 p.m., officers responded to 200 E. Via Rancho Pkwy to 
investigate a fight. The reporting party told officers he had confronted a male whom he 
witnessed kicking the doors of the mall. The victim reported being battered by the 
suspect before fleeing in a pickup truck. The victim chased the suspect and jumped into 
the bed of the truck. The victim rode in the bed of the truck through the mall parking lot 
before deciding to jump out. The suspect stopped and fired a pistol, later determined to 
be a BB gun, at the victim about six times. The victim was not injured. The suspect was 
later identified and arrested for assault with a deadly weapon. The suspect was booked 
at the Vista Detention Facility. 

 
Events 
 

 On November 4, 2016 KSON Radio personalities John and Tammy broadcast live from 
The Golden Egg Omelet House in the City of Escondido to support the San Diego Food 
Bank. Escondido Police Officers stopped by John and Tammy’s Food Fund Stop #3 to 
show their support and raise awareness for the campaign. The Food Fund collects non-
perishable food items for distribution by the San Diego Food Bank to local families in 
need. For more information about the Food Fund can be found on KSON Radio’s 
website at http://www.kson.com/blogs/john-tammy-morning/food-fund-escondido-police-
department 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 14 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 Captain Kogler attended State Senator Joel Anderson’s (38th district) California Heroes 
Month award ceremony.  The ceremony took place on Saturday November 5th.  Patricia 
Huerta from Escondido Education Compact was the recipient of the award as a result of 
EPD’s nomination. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 On November 5, 2016, Konner Rose was awarded the high honor of Eagle Scout 
presented by Troop 659. The ceremony took place at the Sikes Adobe Historic 
Farmstead in Escondido. Konner is one of Escondido Police Explorer Post’s newest 
members joining our ranks in August this year. Konner earned 35 merit badges during 
his Scouting career. Escondido Police Explorer Post 2600 is proud to have Konner as 
part of our police family. Congratulations Konner! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 15 

 

 

### 


	Consent Calendar 
	Item #3
	Item #4
	Item #5
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Item #13
	Item #14
	Item #15
	Item #16
	Item #17
	Item #18
	Public Hearings
	Item #19
	Future Agenda
	Item #20
	City Manager's Update/Briefing
	City Manager's Update



